
 
 

  COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
3rd CDBG CITIZENS ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 

February 8, 2018, 12:00 Noon – 1:30 PM 
Third Floor Conference Room, Lewiston City Building 

FINAL MINUTES 
 

Roll Call:  The meeting was started at 12.00 p.m. 
Members Present:  Sue Charron, Joline Beam, Sara Goodrich, David Nielsen, Jr.,  
Jason Lavoie and Hawo Abdille 
Members Absent:  Pauline Gudas 
Staff Present:  Lincoln Jeffers, Jayne Jochem and Cathy Lekberg  

  
1) Agency Interviews: 
 

Sandcastle Clinical & Educational Services – Speech & Language Therapy 
Program (NEW) – Stephanie Gelinas and Charlene O’Clair presenting - 
 
Stephanie said that this agency was started in 1996 and was housed in the basement of 
a facility that was very small.  They were providing speech and language therapy 
services in classrooms and there were 12 families and two staff members.  Twenty two 
years later they are in a much larger facility in the River Valley community in Lewiston.  
They have 40 professionals working for them and have served 2,000 families last year.  
This agency is unique and they are not a duplicated service in that every child is 
educated in the same classroom whether they have disabilities or not.  This is a very 
different approach but has been believed in since 1996.  Half of the children in their 
classrooms have disabilities and half are typically developing.  They have a team of 
therapists that go in and out of the classrooms providing services for these children.   The 
CDBG funding would be for the Speech and Language Therapy program.  This is in 
direct response to Goal 1 of the Consolidated Plan and addresses two of the strategies 
put forward by the City.  With timely and appropriate speech and language therapy there 
is huge implications for literacy, social relationships and quality of life up until adulthood.  
Families are also included in the therapy with their children and eventually some parents 
become volunteers for them.  This program is high impact and helps families transition 
out of poverty.  Charlene said that the funds will be used for a Speech Therapist position.  
They mainly serve low to moderate income families but they open their doors to 
everyone.   
 
Joline said she used to work for Pathways and Stephanie said they still provide services 
for Pine Tree Society which acquired Pathways.    Both Joline and Jason thought this 
was a great program.  Sara asked if this is the first time applying for supplemental 
funding and Stephanie said yes, but they have written other grants and also partner with 
United Way.  Sara asked if United Way is subsidizing this program and Stephanie said 
yes.  Sara asked about the speech pathologists and Stephanie said they have a team of 
them who work on-site and off-site wherever needed and CDBG funds would increase 
the hours for this.    
 
 



3rd CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes for February 8, 2018 Page 2 of 5 
 
 
 

 
Sexual Assault Prevention & Response Services – Children’s Advocacy Center 
(NEW) – Kat Perry and Marty McIntyre presenting -  
 
Kat stated that the Children’s Advocacy Center (CAC) serves Androscoggin, Franklin and 
Oxford Counties.  They promote healing of victims of child abuse by providing strong 
community response to investigation, treatment and prevention of abuse by identifying 
and breaking down barriers for victims.  The CAC is a place where children who have 
been abused can be interviewed by a specially trained interviewer in a child-friendly 
environment and other people such as law enforcement, DHHS and prosecutors can 
witness the interview via closed circuit television in another room.  The initial referrals of 
abuse are only accepted through law enforcement.  CDBG funding will be used for the 
salary of a CAC position which allows the CAC to provide coordinated forensic interviews 
and family advocacy services.  Marty said that their program meets Goal 1 in the 
Consolidated Plan and Strategy 3.  Children needs to feel safe and if not safe, the child 
will have problems.  This program helps them move forward by making the abuse stop.  
Sue asked what if a parent does not believe the child was abused and Kat said they work 
with that person to make them understand.  Jason mentioned that on their Board of 
Directors, they have no representation from the Lewiston area and Marty said that is true.  
Sara asked if they were increasing services or maintaining and Marty said maintaining 
services. 
 
Trinity Jubilee Center – Day Shelter & Resource Center – Erin Reed presenting -  
 
Erin said that the Day Shelter and Resource Center is a place where people can come 
indoors and are offered couches to rest on, bathrooms, outlets to charge phones, water, 
and a place to wash up.  They are open Monday through Saturday during the day.  They 
stay open in all types of weather.  Because area overnight shelters close each morning, 
the day shelter operates all year round offering a cool place in the summer and a warm 
place in the winter.  They work with homeless people to try and find housing for them and  
Tedford Housing is one of the agencies they work with.  They provide medical help 
including HIV testing and a flu shot clinic every year.  They offer office space where 
people can use a fax machine or a computer if needed and offer help with resumes and 
finding a job.  It is hard to work or find work when you are homeless and they recommend 
services or other agencies that can help the homeless.  Joline asked where do homeless 
people go after you close and Erin said they go to Hope Haven Gospel Mission.  Hawo 
commented that this place is a first resource for many people and said they do a great 
job there.  Sara asked how many staff and Erin said three full time employees and the 
fourth interpreter position is split between three people.  There are always two staff 
members working at the facility.  Jason asked about only allowing homeless people in the 
early morning and Erin said they had to change it to homeless only at 8:00 a.m. because 
people were coming in early and drinking and dealing drugs and causing problems.  They 
now open the facility up to everyone at 12:00 p.m. if they want to come and hang out they 
can.  It has made the facility calmer.   
 
 



3rd CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes for February 8, 2018 Page 3 of 5 
 
 
 

 
Trinity Jubilee Center - Food Pantry – Erin Reed presenting - 
 
Erin said every Thursday the Food Pantry provides 2,000 lbs. of fresh produce to people.  
They provide this produce on a weekly basis rather than monthly so it will not go bad.  
and also provide non-perishable foods each week.  They have a diaper bank that gives 
out 4,000 diapers per month.  This pantry is not just for the homeless because there are 
some people who do not make enough money to buy food and they come to them.  They 
also give out children’s books and hold children’s cooking classes.  Many of these people 
participate in the resource center and they help them find jobs.  The Food Pantry takes 
20% of their time to go to the food bank, prepare the food, run the distribution and clean 
up after.  They serve 300 households in four hours.  The CDBG funding is very important 
to run this program.  Sara asked if they have other funding and Erin said United Way 
contributes to this program, they write grants and put out newsletters. 
 
Promise Early Education – Extended Care Program – Monica Redlewske and  
Sharon Philbrook Bergeron presenting -  
 
Monica stated this agency is a high quality childcare that is hooked up with doctors, 
family advocates and the WIC program to help families.  She said that 100% of families 
served are at poverty level and that more than half are in Lewiston.  Their program 
accepts children from six weeks to five years old and families are within the 201 – 204 
census tract.  All of their teachers are accredited or on their way to be accredited.  The 
Extended Care Program is open 11 hours per day so that people are able to work, train 
or go to school.  They offer the families and their children health education, nutrition, 
counseling, dental screens, early intervention and family home visits if needed.  Parents 
pay for extended services based on a sliding fee scale.  The CDBG funds would be used 
as leverage for this program.  Sara asked if they have a waiting list and Monica said they 
have about 50 – 60 families waiting. 
 
Safe Voices – Androscoggin Justice Project – Elise Johansen and Rebecca Austin 
presenting -   
 
Elise said this program is designed to find out what victims of domestic abuse need to be 
safe.  They focus on preventing further incidents of domestic violence by increasing 
victim’s safety and knowledge of the patterns of domestic violence, improving their 
understanding of the civil and criminal justice system and providing them with the support 
and resources to increase their safety and build resiliency.   Abusers sometimes use 
financial power over a victim by withholding child support which could make them 
homeless.  Our advocates work with each client to address their specific needs and to 
develop strategies to minimize the barriers they face when rebuilding their lives.  They 
serve low income families and partner with other agencies.  They offer training to law 
enforcement, medical doctors and nurses to make them understand what is happening to 
the victims.  The CDBG funds are combined with support from the United Way and State 
and Federal funding and this agency does fundraising.  Jason mentioned that it is not just 



3rd CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes for February 8, 2018 Page 4 of 5 
 
 
 

women but men that are victims of domestic abuse and Elise agreed and said they serve 
all victims of domestic abuse. 
 
SeniorsPlus – Living Independently as Older Adults – Betsy Sawyer-Manter and 
Nate Miller presenting -  

 
Betsy stated that SeniorsPlus has served older adults in the Androscoggin, Oxford and 
Franklin Counties since 1972.  They provide the basic needs of food, nutrition and 
financial stability and advocacy, education and assistance to older adults in Lewiston.  
Because seniors are life-learners, they provide an Education Center which is located in 
their Lewiston office on Mollison Way which offers many different educational classes for 
seniors to attend.  They also have a nutrition program called Meals-On-Wheels which 
partners with the Good Shepherd Food Bank to get products for a lower cost so they can 
serve more people and provide nutritional meals to seniors who cannot leave their homes 
because of hospital visits or disabilities.  Nate Miller, the Community Services Manager 
said they have many programs but basically all of their programs are community-based 
services that are designed to help them meet their mission which is to keep older adults 
and adults with disabilities stay in their homes as long as possible.  To meet seniors 
basic needs, they go over benefits and sit down with seniors having financial difficulties 
and go through all the benefits that tthey might be eligible for.  Application completion 
assistance is also provided.  They offer Medicare counseling, and in 2017, they saved 
people over one million dollars through this counseling.  It consists of one-on-one 
counseling with trained staff who go through the plans and make sure they are receiving 
the best Medicare Supplement Plan.  They have helped 473 Lewiston resident apply for 
Medicare Savings Programs and that is a minimum savings of over $2,000 per year.  If 
they can save people money, it will help people to afford their basic needs such as food, 
transportation, medical care, medications, heating and housing.  In 2016, they had over 
11,000 people and in 2017, they served over 15,000.  Betsy said this includes all three 
counties.  The Meals-on Wheels program served 2,626 Lewiston residents who were 
homebound and could not prepare their own meals or get to the store to buy groceries.  
Delivering these meals can also be a safety check for these seniors.    
 
Sue asked if the funding would be for one or more of these programs and Nate said it 
would fund a few different programs, the Money Minded program, Meals-on-Wheels and 
Medicare Counseling.  Sue asked about the voucher program and Betsy said local 
restaurants submit menus and if they get approved, seniors can dine with their families at 
a reasonable price outside of their homes.  This is very popular and it gets seniors out of 
their homes so they are not isolated.  Sue asked if this was only for low-income seniors 
and Betsy said the majority are low income but they would not turn anyone away in need.  
Joline asked how they advertise the program and Betsy said word of mouth, radio station 
advertising and Nate sometimes speaks at conferences and meetings.  Joline suggested 
leaving these brochures at medical offices where many seniors frequent.  Jason asked 
how Meals-on-Wheels ensures the food is being consumed and Betsy said delivery 
volunteers ask to see what they have in the refrigerator to see if the meals were still 
there.  Sometimes if meals are piling up it is because the senior may have dementia and 
does not know how to prepare these meals.  In that case, they may need to have 



3rd CDBG Citizens Advisory Committee Meeting Minutes for February 8, 2018 Page 5 of 5 
 
 
 

volunteers go there assist in preparing these meals.  Sara asked if they have tried to 
have seniors house share and Betsy said that there has been some success but most 
seniors want to stay in their own home not another seniors home. 

 
2) Review and approval of February 1, 2018 meeting minutes. 

 
The following motion was made: 
MOTION: by Jason Lavoie to accept the February 1, 2018 CDBG Citizen Advisory 

Committee Minutes as presented.  Second by David Nielsen, Jr. 
 VOTED: 6-0 (Passed)  
 
3) Adjournment 

 
The following motion was made: 
MOTION: by Sue Charron to adjourn meeting at 1:55 p.m.   Second by Joline Beam. 

 VOTED: 6-0 (Passed) 
 


